# Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-21-2008

# Dypwick v. Swift Transp. Co., Inc. Appellant's Brief Dckt. 35027

#### **ISSUES**

Your Honors I have several points to bring up in the matter of the way my case was handled. From the very start I feel that the burden of proof has been placed on me. During the process Swift has always had the last word until this point. They have misrepresented reasons for my termination and confused the examiner and the Industrial Commission. I will briefly as best I can clarify my concerns and hope that a fresh prospective will show what I feel to be an unjust termination.

#### WARNINGS/WRITE-UPS

I have never received any write ups during my employment with Swift Trucking. The only warning I received was during my training period due to misinformation provided by my mentor/trainer.

#### HANDBOODK ISSUES

The handbook I received was old, outdated and missing pages. As you can see in my previous briefs I have continually documented that the handbook I received was missing the policy for which I was terminated. The Industrial commission realized the importance of this fact and still made several errors. The most important error was in assuming that I actually had page 22 in my manual and assuming it would contain a damaged equipment policy. They addressed this by saying I should have displayed common sense and have been able to understand what my employer expected of me anyway. This certainly doesn't meet the preponderance of evidence that the employer is supposed to show and not me. This misunderstanding is documented on page 66 of the original list of exhibits. On page 65 they further state that the "standard of conduct"

appeared on different pages of two examples. The Industrial Commission further stated that discussion is identical in both exhibits when in actuality my copy has 29 listed standard of conduct policies (see page 42 of original list of exhibits) while their standards of conduct have 35 policies (see page 36 of original list of exhibits). This may seem minor but is only one of many key oversights and misrepresentations of my entire case.

#### INCOMPLETE INVESTIGATION

After my brief meeting with Mr. Hadley on June 8, 2007, I was told that there would be an investigation and it would take at least a week for Phoenix to make a decision. This is further stated in the handbook that a decision of this magnitude would be handled at a corporate level in Phoenix.

- 1. No attempt to reach the previous driver was made to see if he in fact had damaged the trailer.
- 2. No attempt to contact Shopko was made to see if they had knowledge of trailer damage. The Shopko facility is equipped with security video cameras at the check out station. No contact was made to review these cameras as they may have supported my claim that the trailer was damaged before I picked it up.

#### LOG BOOK

Much has been made about my failure to note damage to the trailer in my log book. In fact no copy of my log book was ever presented as evidence and for good reason. The log book is a very small piece of paper with very limited area to make a notation of

damage. There was no way I could completely explain this incident on the log book form. Furthermore Mr. Hadley was less than honest on several occasions during the phone hearing held by the appeals examiner. Mr. Stephens, the appeals examiner, was confused about the timing of events regarding my reporting or failing to report the damage to the trailer. In the **Findings of Fact** on page 16 of the list of exhibits he states that on June 8, 2007, was the first time Mr. Hadley received a report about a trailer that I had just unhooked and unloaded. He further notes the significance of not putting the damage into a log book and my admission that in hindsight I should have written something. On number 9 of **Findings of Fact** Mr. Hadley stated that not reporting trailer damage in a log book was a violation of policy that in and of itself could have resulted in my discharge. This is not true. They never documented this policy and this statement was misrepresentation on Mr. Hadley's version of why I was terminated. No. 8 of the **Findings of Fact** shows Mr. Stephens was aware that I had reported damage to the trailer attaching a written note to it after consulting my home terminal safety manager.

On page 28 of the list of exhibits you will see that my inexperience during my questioning of Mr. Hadley prevented me from bringing out discrepancies/willful admissions and misrepresentations of the chain of events. One of the questions I was able to ask Mr. Hadley was he aware that one full day earlier on June 7, 2008, which was the actual date I dropped off the trailer, I reported the trailer damage to Shawn Marks, my safety manager. His response was "yes I remember but you didn't specify damage or when it took place". Further review of that page will show I don't feel Mr. Stephens realized that this was the best way based upon my training to report damage. As I had

reported previous trailer damage in this exact same manner without noting it on my log book I feel there is an ulterior motive by Mr. Hadley for my termination.

Log book violations were not even one of the original reasons listed as a reason for my termination. Under the way the system works Mr. Hadley was less than honest and Mr. Stephens misunderstood the significance of the claim I was fired for a log book violation. The way the process works is the log books are placed in a sealed pouch, placed in a locked drop box and sent to Phoenix. The log book dates in question could not have possibly been reviewed by Mr. Hadley in Salt Lake City because on the date of my termination, June 11, 2007, the log books were still on their way to Phoenix and would not even be entered into the computer until days if not weeks later. This is very significant proof and proves that Mr. Hadley was not completely forthcoming with his testimony. This lends credibility of my feelings that my termination was retaliatory and not based on any definitive policy I was ever made aware of.

# MR. HADLEY

In my dealings with Mr. Hadley I have found him on several occasions to be less than the several occasions the several occasions the several occasions the several occasions to be less than the several occasions the several occ

事務解決的表示とようには、これが大阪は大阪の大阪の関係はよりによっている。これでは、これによっている。

The most blatant occasion was a documented Costco driver meeting concerning log book entries. To be brief, Mr. Hadley left a group of drivers believing his suggested solution to a log book entry problem was adequate. In fact it was not. The meeting was about to end at that point when I realized that his suggestion was not adequate. As the drivers were leaving the meeting I pointed this out to Mr. Hadley. The other drivers then

realized that they had been misled and their jobs could be in peril if they had followed Mr. Hadley's suggestions as they understood them. The meeting then became more confrontational between the other drivers and Mr. Hadley as they were quite upset that he had misled them. Mr. Hadley was perfectly willing to let this group of drivers leave the meeting believing his instruction on something that he knew was not true and Mr. Hadley was quite upset with me when all I wanted was a definitive answer and to know how to properly maintain my log book.

Further Mr. Hadley in our June 8, 2007 meeting misrepresented to me the decisions that would be made determining my termination. These are documented in my previous briefs in the list of exhibits.

hereby files and the control of the control of the explication of the control of the control of the control of

#### TRAILER DAMAGE

There is good reason no photos and no costs were ever listed by Swift Trucking/Mr.

Hadley regarding the damage to the trailer. Damage to the trailer was minimal and was repaired with a piece of small piece of sheet metal and a couple of dozen rivets. In the audio recording Mr. Hadley exaggerated the damage to the trailer.

### HANDBOOK

the authority property for previous research soft for the control for the section

The policies in the handbook are purposefully vague and could justify terminating a person for any reason at all as they were interpreted by the Industrial Commission.

They were never followed by Mr. Hadley as they were actually intended to be regarding warnings and severity of discipline. The vague wording lead Mr. Hadley to jump to the most severe form of punishment possible.

#### MY CONCLUDING STATEMENT

Your Honors, I feel I have adequately addressed my concerns and feel a fresh and unbiased review of this case will show that I was wrongfully terminated by Swift Transportation Co. and that Swift certainly did not have a preponderance of evidence to justify my termination.

I further believe my termination was pushed through by Mr. Hadley for retaliatory reasons as all of my professional dealings with him were unpleasant.

The original reason as reported to the Labor Board for my termination was a policy that I have proven was never made clear to me and I had no knowledge of during my training.

The ascertation that I did not display common sense in addressing this policy, figuring out on my own how to proceed, doesn't explain why on previous occasions when I had reported damage in the exact same manner as this incident on trailers I picked up, my course of actions never put my job in peril and never resulted in written or verbal warnings.

If in fact this had been such a flagrant violation of company rules why did my safety manager Shawn Marks handle this in such a completely different manner? He never took

any disciplinary action for this incident that Mr. Hadley opted to terminate me for. This is definitive proof of Mr. Hadley's animosity and I feel proves my claim that my handling of the situation had never in the past been brought to my attention as being procedurally incorrect.

Response to the control of the contr

Kurt J. Dypwick 1901 Mount St. # C Missoula Mt 59801 Claimant / Appellant