UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-18-2008

Dypwick v. Swift Transp. Co., Inc. Respondent's Brief Dckt. 35027

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(1) Nature of the Case:

Claimant, Kurt J. Dypwick (hereinafter "Claimant"), appeals a Decision and Order of the Idaho Industrial Commission (hereinafter "Commission") holding that Employer, Swift Transportation Company, Inc. (hereinafter "Employer"), discharged him for misconduct in connection with his employment, which made Claimant ineligible for benefits under Idaho Code § 72-1366(5). Appendix A.

(2) Course of the Proceedings Below:

After his separation from employment on June 11, 2007, Claimant filed a claim for unemployment benefits. Tr. p. 6, Ll. 13-14. On August 8, 2007, a claims examiner for the Idaho Department of Labor (hereinafter "Department") issued an Eligibility Determination finding Claimant ineligible for unemployment benefits and that Employer's account was not chargeable for experience rating purposes. R. p. 10. Claimant filed an appeal with the Department's Appeals Bureau on August 21, 2007. Exhibit 5. After a telephone hearing in the matter, Department Appeals Examiner, Gregory Stevens, (hereinafter "Appeals Examiner"), issued a Decision on September 11, 2007, affirming the Eligibility Determination. Appendix B.

On September 25, 2007, Claimant filed an appeal with the Commission. R. pp. 7-20. After conducting a *de novo* review of the record pursuant to Idaho Code § 72-1368(7), the Commission issued a Decision and Order on November 15, 2007, affirming the Appeals Examiner's Decision. Appendix A, p. 20. The Commission adopted the Appeals Examiner's findings of fact and set out its own conclusions of law. Appendix A, p. 14. The Commission

subsequently denied Claimant's motion for reconsideration. R. pp. 75-76. Claimant now brings an appeal to this Court.

(3) Statement of Facts:

After going through training, Claimant began working for Employer as an over-the-road truck driver on July 10, 2006. Tr. p. 6, Ll. 4, 8-9; p. 25, Ll. 2-3. On November 19, 2006, Claimant had an accident while driving for Employer in Helena, Montana. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 6-7. Claimant hit a traffic signal while making a right turn. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 7-9. On March 29, 2007, Claimant had a second accident while backing into a loading dock in Spanish Fork, Utah. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 11-13; p. 16, Ll. 20-25. Employer considered both accidents preventable. Exhibit 3 pp. 9-10, 16.

After his second accident, Claimant attended a National Safety Counsel Course on April 26, 2007, taught by Employer's Safety Manager, Brett Hadley. Tr. p. 9, Ll. 2-6. At the end of that training course, Claimant spoke to Mr. Hadley and asked where he stood with Employer after having two accidents. Tr. p. 9, Ll. 2-9. Mr. Hadley warned Claimant that his next accident would result in his termination and that he needed "to be squeaky clean." Tr. p. 9, Ll. 9-13; p. 25, Ll. 15-19; p. 32, Ll. 16-20.

In June 2007, Claimant picked up a trailer from the Shopko Distribution Center in Boise, Idaho, to haul it to Salt Lake City, Utah. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 20-22; p. 34, Ll. 1-2. Claimant performed a pre-trip inspection of the trailer. Tr. p. 26, Ll. 1-6. Prior to leaving for Salt Lake City, Claimant did not report any damage to the trailer in his log book, nor did he report any trailer damage to Employer. Tr. p. 26, L. 25; p. 27, Ll. 1-10. Claimant acknowledged that during a pre-

trip inspection, he was required by federal law to note equipment damage in his log book. Tr. p. 17, Ll. 24-25; p. 18, Ll. 1-7; p. 28, Ll. 12-25; p. 29, Ll. 1-3. After he arrived in Salt Lake City on June 8, 2007, Claimant called his home terminal in Lewiston, Idaho, and reported that he had picked up a damaged trailer in Boise. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 20-21; p. 26, L. 25; p. 27, Ll. 18-21.

When Claimant turned the trailer over to the repair shop in Salt Lake City, Employer's shop foreman reported the damage to Mr. Hadley, Employer's Safety Manager. Tr. p. 7, Ll. 20-25. Mr. Hadley drove to the repair shop in Salt Lake City and physically inspected the damage. Tr. p. 8, Ll. 2-6. Mr. Hadley testified that he could see a good portion of insulation from the inside of the trailer and the damage was "fresh." Tr. p. 8, Ll. 2-9. Claimant testified that the trailer had a two foot by two foot section missing from the side of it. Tr. p. 28, Ll. 7-10; p. 33, Ll. 22-25.

Employer had a policy and procedure handbook for its drivers entitled "Driver Manual." Appendix C, p. 28. Employer submitted portions of that Manual for the record. Appendix C. On July 5, 2006, Claimant acknowledged in writing that he received a copy of Employer's "Driver Manual" and that he understood he would be bound by the rules and policies in the Manual. Appendix C, p. 28; Tr. p. 14, Ll. 1-3. In the Manual, Employer warned its drivers that "failure to report an incident or accident regardless of its severity, or multiple incidents or accidents while driving a Company vehicle" was prohibited. Appendix C, p. 30; Appendix D, p. 34. Under the heading "Accidents/Cargo Claims," the Manual provided, in part, "A driver shall be considered in an 'ACCIDENT' if any motor vehicle which he/she is driving or of which he/she is in charge; shall come into contact with any person, animal, other vehicle, or inanimate

object in a manner that results in death, injury, or property damage." Appendix C, p. 32. Employer also had a section in its Manual entitled "Equipment Damage" that provided an employee finding damaged equipment must report the damage immediately before leaving with the equipment or risk being charged with the damage. Appendix C, p. 29. Employer discharged Claimant for having a third preventable accident on June 11, 2007. Tr. p. 6, Ll. 13-16; p. 7, Ll. 20-23; p. 25, L. 14.

ISSUE ON APPEAL

Is there substantial and competent evidence in the record to support the Idaho Industrial Commission's findings and conclusion that Employer discharged Claimant for misconduct in connection with his employment?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

When the Court reviews a Commission decision, "it exercises free review over questions of law, but reviews questions of fact only to determine whether substantial and competent evidence supports the Commission's findings." <u>Oxley v. Medicine Rock</u>, 139 Idaho 476, 479, 80 P.3d 1077, 1080 (2003). Whether an employee's conduct constitutes misconduct is a factual determination that will be upheld unless not supported by substantial and competent evidence. <u>Harris v. Electrical Wholesale</u>, 141 Idaho 1, 3, 105 P.3d 267, 269 (2004). Where conflicting evidence is presented that is supported by substantial, competent evidence, the findings reached by the Commission will be sustained regardless of whether the Court may have reached a different conclusion. <u>Harris</u>, 141 Idaho at 3, 105 P.3d at 269. Substantial and competent evidence is relevant evidence which a reasonable mind might accept to support a conclusion.

Oxley, 139 Idaho at 479, 80 P.3d at 1080. The Court has described the appropriate test for substantial and competent evidence for the purposes of judicial review as requiring a court to determine whether an agency's findings of fact are reasonable. <u>Steen v. Denny's Restaurant</u>, 135 Idaho 234, 237, 16 P.3d 910, 913 (2000).

It is for the Commission to determine the credit and weight to be given to the testimony admitted. <u>Bullard v. Sun Valley Aviation, Inc.</u>, 128 Idaho 430, 432, 914 P.2d 564, 566 (1996). The Commission's conclusions regarding the credibility and weight of evidence will not be disturbed unless the conclusions are clearly erroneous. In reviewing a decision of the Commission, the Court views all facts and inferences in the light most favorable to the party who prevailed before the Commission. <u>Oxley</u>, 139 Idaho at 479, 80 P.3d at 1080.

Appellate court review is limited to the evidence, theories and arguments that were presented below. <u>Obenchain v. McAlvain Construction, Inc.</u>, 143 Idaho 56, 57, 137 P.3d 443, 444 (2006). The Court will not consider arguments raised for the first time on appeal. <u>Excell</u> <u>Construction, Inc. v. State Department of Labor</u>, 141 Idaho 688, 693, 116 P.3d 18, 23 (2005).

ARGUMENT

There is substantial and competent evidence in the record to support the Industrial Commission's findings and conclusion that Employer discharged Claimant for misconduct in connection with his employment, which made Claimant ineligible for unemployment insurance benefits.

There is no dispute in the record that Employer discharged Claimant on June 11, 2007. Employer's Safety Manager, Brett Hadley, testified that Employer discharged Claimant because he had a third preventable accident. Tr. p. 6, Ll. 15-16; p. 16, Ll. 12-17. Idaho's Employment Security Law provides that "an employee who has been discharged on grounds of work-related misconduct is ineligible for unemployment compensation. <u>Roll v. City of Middleton</u>, 105 Idaho 22, 25, 665 P.2d 721, 724 (1983); Idaho Code § 72-1366(5) (2006). Misconduct is defined as the willful, intentional disregard of an employer's interests; a deliberate violation of an employer's rules; or a disregard of the standards of behavior an employer has the right to expect of its employees. <u>Desilet v. Glass Doctor</u>, 142 Idaho 655, 657, 132 P.3d 412, 414 (2006). The burden of proving misconduct by a preponderance of the evidence is on the Employer. <u>Harris</u>, 141 Idaho at 3, 105 P.3d at 269.

In its Decision and Order, the Commission concluded Claimant's conduct met all three definitions of misconduct, but ultimately discussed only one, whether or not Claimant disregarded the standards of behavior Employer had a right to expect of him. Appendix A, pp. 15-19. The standards of behavior test of employee misconduct is a two part inquiry of (1) whether the employee's conduct fell below the standards of behavior the employer had a right to expect, and (2) whether the employer's expectations were objectively reasonable under the circumstances. Folks v. Moscow School District #281, 129 Idaho 833, 837, 933 P.2d 642, 646 (1997). An employer's expectations are ordinarily reasonable where they have been communicated to an employee. Folks, 129 Idaho at 838, 933 P.2d at 647. Unlike the other definitions of misconduct, a claimant's disregard of an employer's standards of behavior need not be subjectively intentional or deliberate. Folks, 129 Idaho at 837, 933 P.2d at 646.

There is substantial and competent evidence in the record to support the Commission's conclusion that Claimant failed to meet the standards of behavior Employer had a right to expect. The record reflects Claimant never disputed Mr. Hadley's testimony that he had been involved in

two preventable accidents prior to June 2007. Nor did Claimant dispute that Hadley warned him his next accident would lead to his discharge. Tr. p. 25, Ll. 15-19. On June 8, 2007, Claimant reported the trailer he had been hauling was damaged. Tr. p. 27, Ll. 18-24.

At the hearing, Claimant maintained that he was not responsible for the trailer damage that led to his discharge. He argued the trailer was damaged before he picked it up in Boise and that he failed to report the damage prior to taking custody of the trailer because he did not have any idea Employer would blame him for the damage he failed to report. Tr. p. 26, Ll. 1-25; p. 27, L. 1. Both the Appeals Examiner and the Commission failed to find Claimant's assertions credible. Appendix A, pp. 18-19; Appendix B, pp. 24-25. It is for the Commission to determine the credit and weight to be given to the testimony admitted. <u>Bullard v. Sun Valley Aviation, Inc.</u>, 128 Idaho 430, 432, 914 P.2d 564, 566 (1996).

Employer submitted a portion of its Driver Manual containing a policy entitled "Equipment Damage" for the record. In that policy, Employer required its drivers to report damage immediately. Claimant testified that he had an old and outdated copy of Employer's Manual without a policy entitled "Damaged Equipment" and therefore, he could not have known Employer would expect him to immediately report equipment damage. Tr. p. 27, L. 25; p. 28, Ll. 1-2; p. 30, Ll. 17-20. Claimant submitted portions of the Manual that he testified he received from Employer to support his testimony.

The Commission found both Claimant's testimony and the selected portions of the Manual he submitted unpersuasive. The Commission found that it could not conclude the provisions in the Manual regarding damaged equipment were missing from Claimant's copy of

the Manual. In its discussion, the Commission noted the typefaces and pagination varied between the pages both parties submitted, but the Commission found the language that both excerpts had in common was identical. Appendix A, p. 17. The Commission also noted the page with the provision in Employer's excerpts entitled "Damaged Equipment" appeared between a section entitled "Prohibition of Spinner Knobs and/or Suicide Knobs" and a section entitled "Tractor Assignment." Appendix A, pp. 17-18; Appendix C, p. 29. The Commission found the single page excerpt Claimant submitted was insufficient because the excerpt began with the section entitled "Tractor Assignment," leading the Commission to conclude that the provision on equipment damage could have been on the previous page, a page Claimant did not submit. Appendix A, p. 18; Appendix D, p. 37.

Under the standards of behavior analysis, an employer's expectations need not be specifically communicated if they flow normally from the employment relationship. <u>Folks</u>, 129 Idaho at 838, 933 P.2d at 647. Both the Appeals Examiner and the Commission found that even if not specifically communicated to Claimant in the form of a policy, Employer communicated its expectations to Claimant. The Appeals Examiner found and the Commission agreed that even without an express directive from Employer to report damage immediately, common sense dictated that a reasonable and responsible person would have done so anyway. Appendix A, pp. 18-19; Appendix B, pp. 24-25.

The Employer's Safety Manager, Brett Hadley, told Claimant just a few weeks earlier that his third preventable accident would result in his discharge and that he needed to be "squeaky clean." Tr. p. 9, Ll. 9-13; p. 25, Ll. 15-19; p. 32, Ll. 16-20. Claimant acknowledged

that during pre-trip inspections he was required by federal law to note equipment damage in his log book. Tr. p. 17, Ll. 24-25; p. 18, Ll. 1-7; p. 28, Ll. 12-25; p. 29, Ll. 1-3. Further, Claimant acknowledged during the hearing that he should have noted the damage to the trailer in his log book before hauling the damaged trailer from Boise to Salt Lake City. Tr. p. 28, Ll. 12-14; p. 33, Ll. 8-13.

The Appeals Examiner concluded that the fact that Claimant failed to report the damage to Employer or note it in his log book was "not the act of a reasonably, prudent person and does not support the [C]laimant's contention that the damage existed prior to his taking the trailer." Appendix B, p. 25. The Commission agreed. The Commission concluded that Claimant's log book suggested the trailer was damage-free when Claimant picked it up and the lack of a report during Claimant's pre-trip inspection further suggested that the trailer became damaged while Claimant was hauling it. Appendix A, p. 18. According to the Commission, the lack of a log book entry and an equipment damage report allowed Employer to reasonably conclude that Claimant's conduct failed to meet Employer's expectations, it was employment related misconduct. Appendix A, p. 19; Appendix B, pp. 24-25.

Claimant also argues that Employer should have reprimanded rather than discharged him. Tr. p. 36, Ll. 6-10. The Commission concluded Claimant's belief he was treated unfairly was not relevant. Appendix A, p. 19. The Court has addressed this argument in <u>Alder v. Mountain</u> <u>States Telephone and Telegraph Company</u>, 92 Idaho 506, 446 P.2d 628 (1968). In that case, the claimants also argued that their employer had a duty to warn them rather than fine, suspend, discharge, or prosecute them. <u>Alder</u>, 92 Idaho at 512, 446 P2d at 634. The Court concluded the claimants' argument was not relevant because the only issue before the Industrial Accident Board, now the Industrial Commission, was the issue of whether the claimants were discharged for misconduct. <u>Id</u>. In this matter, the Commission concluded Claimant was discharged for employment related misconduct. Applying the Court's holding in <u>Alder</u>, Claimant's argument that he should have been reprimanded rather than discharged is not relevant.

What is relevant is that Employer advised Claimant less than six weeks before he took the trailer from Boise to Salt Lake City that he would be discharged for another preventable accident. If the trailer had been damaged prior to Claimant taking it, it would only be reasonable for an employee in Claimant's position to make sure someone knew about the damage prior to taking it. At the very least, Claimant should have noted the damage in his log book. The fact that he failed to do either is not the act of a reasonably prudent person and does not support Claimant's contention that the damage existed prior to Claimant taking the trailer. Under these circumstances, Employer reasonably concluded that Claimant was responsible for the damage to the trailer and that the damage was preventable.

CONCLUSION

Because the record contains substantial and competent evidence to support the Commission's conclusion that Employer discharged Claimant for misconduct in connection with his employment, making Claimant ineligible for benefits pursuant to Idaho Code § 72-1366(5), the Department asks this Court to affirm the Commission's Decision.